Village of Lemont
Planning and Zoning Commission
Regular Meeting of December 19, 2018

A regular meeting of the Planning and Zoning Consiois for the Village of Lemont was held
at 6:30 p.m. on Wednesday, December 19, 2018 isg¢bend floor Board Room of the Village
Hall, 418 Main Street, Lemont, lllinois.

CALL TO ORDER

A. Pledge of Allegiance

Chairman Spinelli called the meeting to order 8il.m. He then led the Pledge of
Allegiance.

B. Verify Quorum

Upon roll call the following were:
Present: Cunningham, McGleam, O’Connor, Zolecgin8&lli
Absent: Glomp and Plahm

Community Development Manager, Mark Herman, ConsyPlanner, Jamie Tate
and Village Trustee Ron Stapleton were also present

C. Approval of Minutes — October 17, 2018 Meeting

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@issioner Zolecki to
approve the minutes from the October 17, 2018 mgetith no changes. A voice
vote was taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

CHAIRMAN’'S COMMENTS

Chairman Spinelli greeted the audience and staexe tare three cases this evening.
He then asked everyone in the audience to pleasd and raise his/her right hand.
He then administered the oath.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

A. 18-23 HINDU TEMPLE REZONING

Chairman Spinelli called for a motion to open thblg hearing for Case 18-23.

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@issioner Zolecki to open
the public hearing for Case 18-23. A voice vota vaken:



Ayes: All
Nays: None
Motion passed

Staff Presentation

Jamie Tate, Consulting Planner, said Tilak Marwawaer of the subject property is
requesting rezoning to INT Institutional Districoin R-2 Single-Family Detached
Residential District. Much of the surrounding pedy is unincorporated. To the
north is residential unincorporated DuPage Couwstyth is PLM Trailer Leasing,
east is Forest Preserve District which is unincoafeal DuPage County, and west is
single-family residences also in unincorporated &ye’County. The subject
property is 20 acres and is located on the northeumdary of Lemont. The present
use is a religious institution.

The property was annexed into the Village in 198d zoned R-2 Detached Single-
Family Residential. The special use allowed a fepguest houses used in
conjunction with temple functions, Ministers quasteauditorium, community center,
multi-level parking facility, Ganesh Temple Indiaaiion, and restaurant to be used
exclusively by devotees and in house resident& Village settled at the time to
accept all the buildings in their current state @ Temple agreed to pave the
parking lots once the conversion of the communénter was completed.

A religious assembly and religious institution msalowed use in the INT district
while it is a special use in the R-2. It is uncledy the Village assigned the R-2
Zoning at the time. The INT district is designedptovide environment for land uses
of a civic, educational, governmental, recreaticaral religious nature.

Mrs. Tate said there are no setback or lot dimenstmcerns in the INT district
versus the R-2 district. The setbacks appear tadieand are provided on the Plat of
Survey. One difference is there is no lot coveraggirement in the INT district
versus R-2. She then read through the differemt lese permissions comparing the
two districts.

There are few non-conformities that are found @nsite that are in both districts.
Fences in both INT and R-2 cannot be located irfrthve yard and cannot be chain
link. The fence surrounding the property and atghte of the Lemont Road entrance
is chain link. The monument sign does not meeteciregulations regarding
landscaping and a limestone base. There are sgnegs difference in the two
zoning district. Monument signs are allowed altstmare footage of up to 32 sfin
residential and 64 sf in INT districts. Electromessage board signs are allowed with
restrictions in the INT district but are not allodvim the R-2 district. There is a 250
foot distance requirement from residentially zofeedl that the Hindu Temple might
not meet. She then read through the standardeZoning.



Mrs. Tate stated the Comprehensive Plan desigtiagearea as INST (Institutional)
land use. The proposed zoning change will briegztbning designation and
Comprehensive Plan land use designation into agmeenstaff does not have
compatibility concerns with the surrounding proert The subject property is a
large site that has been in operation for over tywgears with no close adjacent
neighbors. There is a large four lane highway s the residential properties to
the west and there is dense landscaping surrouticengindu Temple. This would
conclude staff's presentation and staff is recondmenapproval.

Chairman Spinelli asked for the electronic messampd, would the applicant have
to come back in for a special use or are they atbwp to 64 feet.

Mrs. Tate said it is a permitted use and they wialde to meet the regulations. One
of the regulations is that they can’t be within 266t from a residential district. If
they don’t meet that then they would have to coaekbn and ask for a variance.
Chairman Spinelli asked if they were asking fos tl@quest.

Mrs. Tate stated they are not.

Chairman Spinelli asked staff if they were awaramf changes on the property.

Mrs. Tate said there is not.

Commissioner McGleam asked if staff had ever foouidany information as to why
it was zoned R-2.

Mrs. Tate stated she did not find out why it wasetb R-2.

Commissioner O’Connor asked if there was any residleon the property currently.
Mrs. Tate said that would be a question for thdiegpipt

Commissioner O’Connor asked why the applicant kingsfor the change.

Mrs. Tate stated the applicant can answer thattigues

Chairman Spinelli then asked the applicant to congard and make a presentation.

Applicant Presentation

Tilak Marwaha said their religious institution hgr®wn. They plan on opening a
small medical facility on campus to reach out tgoare in need of medical care. A
lot of their members have medical backgrounds aedvdling to help out. They
have a task force that are working on this. In&@keir board approved a
Montessori school so they are looking in that dioecalso.



Commissioner McGleam asked if medical care wasvaitbin INT district.

Mrs. Tate stated hospitals are permitted in thstridt; however she is not sure if a
medical care facility is.

Mark Herman, Community Development Manager, sagpitals would require a
special use in the INT district. Medical care pla@are not permitted in INT district.
They would have to see what they are proposingéafst is allowed or if they will
have to seek some other type of relief in the futur

Chairman Spinelli stated he would like to reiteitdizt this request is just for rezoning
and there is no request to change the use of tpepy. He then asked if they are
requesting at this time an electronic message board

Mr. Marwaha said they are not requesting anythirttyia time.

Commissioner O’Connor asked if there was anyonedion the property at this
time.

Mr. Marwaha stated there is one building that Sgased to the priest but it is
inhabitable and nobody is living there.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there were any furtheesiions for the applicant. None
responded. He then asked if there was anyoneiautlience that wanted to speak in
regards to this public hearing.

Public Comment

Vera Gardner asked if they are trying to put inedimal or mental hospital.
Chairman Spinelli said this public hearing is jtestthe rezoning. One of their
potential plans is to provide a medical facility-site. A hospital is a special use in
the INT district and the medical facility is notrpetted. If they pursue the special
use then the applicant would have to come back &eate¢he residents would receive
a notice again.

Ms. Gardner stated the lights are becoming an.issue

Doni Robinson, attorney for the applicant, statex}/thave spoken to the code
enforcer and they changed the angle of the light.

Ms. Gardner said there is the one blue light ine¥ening time.

Ms. Robinson stated they are definitely willingwtork on getting that changed.



Paul Pachl said his house is surrounded by thesupjoperty. He would like to
know how this will affect his zoning.

Mr. Herman stated that they are in DuPage Countytla@ir zoning is in no way over
them. So their R-2 is different from Lemont’s zognidistricts.

Linda Pachl asked if there is any way they couldtpone the meeting until they have
a lawyer look everything over so they can see hamili affect them.

Mr. Herman said the Hindu Temple does own properuPage County. He
showed on the overhead everything that is in thedé of Lemont that is proposed
to be changed.

Mr. Pachl asked where are they proposing to pubibdical institution.

Chairman Spinelli explained that there is no prepés a medical institution. The
proposal is just for rezoning and it is only foe throperty located in red.

Ms. Gardner asked if by changing the zoning waltteffect the way traffic is
handled for their big events.

Chairman Spinelli stated that will not change. e tHen asked if there was anybody
else that wanted to make further comments or asktguns in regards to this public
hearing. None responded. He then called for aomad close the public hearing.

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@issioner O’Connor to
close the public hearing for Case 18-23. A voiotewvas taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

Plan Commission Discussion

Chairman Spinelli asked if any of the Commissiored any further questions or
comments. None responded. He then called fortaomér recommendation.

Plan Commission Recommendation

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@ssioner Cunningham to
recommend to the Mayor and Board of Trustees appahCase 18-23, rezoning of
The Hindu Temple of Greater Chicago. A roll calteravas taken:

Ayes: McGleam, Cunningham, Zolecki, O’Connor, 8lhin

Nays: None

Motion passed



Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@issioner O’Connor to
authorize the Chairman to approve the Findingsaat For Case 18-23 as prepared by
staff. A voice vote was taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

B. 18-24 UNIFIED DEVELOPMEN ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS
Chairman Spinelli called for a motion to open tiubl hearing for Case 18-24.

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@issioner O’Connor to
open the public hearing for Case 18-24 UDO Text Admeents. A voice vote was
taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

Jamie Tate, Consulting Planner, said there arevdJleO amendments that they need
to bring forward. The first is they were notifibgl IDNR that they were missing
some references to DuPage County and Will Countysame dates on FEMA maps.
The next is there has been an inquiry to the \llag a resident to amend fences in
corner through lots to allow five foot see-throdghces. She then showed the
different types of corner lots. There would bechain link, PVC, or wood material
allowed.

Mr. Herman said on page 6, there is the restridiian a fence is at least 20 feet from
the edge of any public street. That is not beimgrded, but if they were to possibly

allow these types of lots that can go up to fivet fées the Plan Commission interested
in those types of lots having the fence closehéostreet.

Chairman Spinelli stated currently they allow féert fences up to the property line.

Mr. Herman said it still needs to be 20 feet frdva €dge of the street, which he
interprets as the curb.

Chairman Spinelli asked what happens if there2S oot parkway. Technically
someone can block the public sidewalk.

Mr. Herman asked if they would like to reword itgmovide a distance from the front
and corner property line.

Discussion continued as to what distance a fengeldlbe from the property line and
whether to allow more than a four foot fence.



Chairman Spinelli said he would permit the fencg®n style into the side yard
setback, no closer than two (2) feet to the prgdare and stay at the four (4) foot
height. In order to soften the corners, there khbe one six foot panel at a 45
degree angle and no 90 degree corners are perradjacent to a public-way.

Mrs. Tate asked should it only be required wittomsany feet off of the property
line.

Chairman Spinelli stated that no 90 degree corstersild be permitted within 10 feet
off of the property line.

Mrs. Tate said another item that was brought wugiati was fence height
discrepancies due to topography. So they willthadl the fence height shall be
measured by average grade of the yard and pro\disgeam.

Chairman Spinelli stated he feels that this willdpeissue for the code enforcement
officer.

Mr. Herman said it was brought up by the buildiriicaal who does go out to do the
fence inspections. Prior to 2008 the Code didnailariation for topography and
currently in the code there is nothing to guidehow to measure a fence height.

Chairman Spinelli stated it should be the average the course of the panel width
up to a maximum panel width of six feet.

All Commissioners agreed.

Mrs. Tate said the next is to reduce the requietbdasks for sheds from principal
structures from 10 feet to O in residential. Cuatiyethe UDO groups sheds and
detached garages in the same category and retjun@sto both be at least 10 feet
from the principal structure. This would be prapgdor just sheds reducing that
setback from 10 feet to zero. The change was sgtlwith the Village Building
Official and he was in support of the modification.

Chairman Spinelli asked if it could be attachetht principal structure.
Mr. Herman stated with what they are proposing tyes

All Commissioners agreed with the change but addhitiod the rear wall of the
principal structure”.

Mrs. Tate said the next amendment is to add a#éstiegiulations for temporary
Construction Contractor Sales Trailers. They wdiddequired to have landscaping
according to the ordinance, the foundation on ithiget cannot be visible and the
trailer must be kept in good condition.



Trustee Stapleton asked if there was any timelinbaw long they can be there.

Mr. Herman stated they do require a permit for saghey might need to add some
timing on there.

Mrs. Tate said sometimes it is written in the Piahinit Development.

Chairman Spinelli asked if they need to have wileeee is a minimum development
size in order to have a construction trailer op-sit

Commissioner McGleam said he feels what staff appsing is aesthetically
acceptable and it will prevent someone from briggartrailer out there unless it is for
business.

Mrs. Tate stated the next section is small celkamae. There is a Small Wireless
Facilities Deployment Act that was approved by $tate of Illinois. It mandates that
all small wireless facilities are now all considé&ermitted uses in the right-of-way
of all zoning districts. Applications are subjéztadministrative review only (except
for height exceptions or variations and designdaaas), and applications are not
subject to zoning review or approval if they areal®d in the right-of-way in any
zoning district or outside of right-of-way in prapezoned exclusively commercial
or industrial.

The Village Board passed an ordinance in June 20d®ting and implementing the
new regulations and permit fees. However, atithe the Board did not amend its
zoning district to put them in as permitted usetheright-of-way. Staff is proposing
to add a new use category “Small Cell Antenna’ltmaain all zoning districts if
located in the right-of-way, and allowed in all etHistricts on private property but
not residential zoning districts or DD Zoning Distr

Trustee Stapleton asked if there were any restnston height or size.

Mrs. Tate said they are allowed to go ten feet alibe pole.

Commissioner McGleam asked if these are put otépmEd poles.

Mr. Herman stated that they could.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there needs to be aireapent to have them so many feet
off the ground.

Mrs. Tate said she had inquired about that andwstsetold that is not anything to
worry about.

Chairman Spinelli stated he feels it should haw@ar@amum of 12 feet.



Mrs. Tate said this proposal is just to add toutiEan design section for the
Downtown District. It talks about accessory stanes attached to poles in the
district. Anything attached to the poles mustdégsonably concealed. She showed
on the overhead different pictures of what the ramte can look like and what a
“stealth” design can look like. Sometimes the Isbe@design can make things bigger.

Chairman Spinelli asked if they were not in favbastealth design and can they
restrict it.

Mrs. Tate stated if it is in a Historic District arDowntown District. You can'’t
discriminate but you can make it a blanket desggtleetics. The word stealth can be
taken out and just say it has to be reasonablecedet.

Chairman Spinelli said he agreed for both districts

Commissioner McGleam asked if they should haveaitcimthe color of the pole,
especially if it is a decorative pole.

Mrs. Tate stated they could add the color shoulttim#éne structure it is attached to.
The next section states that it requires the Hstoreservation Commission to notify
the applicant of a public hearing by certified mdtldoes not make sense to send this
to the applicant when they are the ones who appiedhis is just being taken out.

Mrs. Tate said they have been notified by the Baskrict that they wish to host
beekeeping classes and keep an apiary on theieggydpcated in the INT Zoning
District. They have requested a location neasstheheast corner of Centennial Park.
The proposed amendment would allow beekeepinghablay with an aviary as an
accessory use in the INT Zoning district. Thewseld be added to the accessory
use table and definitions will be added. Theresafi@wv regulations that she had
found from other communities. She then read thhegalations.

Trustee Stapleton asked if a distance can be@®triesidential.
Mrs. Tate stated yes they can.
Commissioner Cunningham said signs should be posted

Chairman Spinelli stated he agrees to just hawetite INT District to see how it
goes and it should be at least 100 feet from ptgfiees.

Mrs. Tate said the next part is regulations fointiigg standards. The code does not
have lot lighting standards. There are other @uris that are typically found in a
local municipality’s zoning code. One is requiriagphotometric plan as part of a
development plan, redevelopment plan and for altesidential projects and for
residential developments that utilize parking lots.



Chairman Spinelli asked if it was for all developitseproposing commercial
lighting.

Mrs. Tate said she agrees that it needs to say 8f& added some wording under

“Glare”. There was no requirement on height foy aan-residential lighting, so this

was added to the section. Also, adding all nordessial lighting is required to be

turned off no later than 60 minutes after busirress's only leaving lighting

necessary for site security. Some things she wiikddo get the Commissions

opinion on is to whether to add the following foedstanding poles:

e Be located within landscaped areas or planterdslaor on sidewalks maintaining
an accessible sidewalk width.

e Be located on a concrete base where no more tgah (@) inches of the base is
located above grade.

e Be located to avoid conflict with trees.

Chairman Spinelli asked if there is a requirementaflandscape island every 20
parking spots.

Mrs. Tate stated yes it is required.

Chairman Spinelli said if you are going to forcentb an island then you are going to
need higher wattages, taller light poles, forwdrdwing lights. He asked why they
are against concrete base.

Mrs. Tate stated it is just to prevent concreteebas the middle of a parking lot.
Curbs tend to protect the lights.

Chairman Spinelli said if you are trying to reddlee nuisance lighting then you will
have to reduce the pole height which then you aneggto need more islands or you
allow these in the stalls.

All Commissioners agreed to not add those reguratio freestanding poles.
Discussion continued in regards to photometric ptamd how they are measured.
Mrs. Tate stated next is linear lighting which yioud on commercial store fronts.
She asked if the Commission wanted to add thigamipit it. She showed pictures
of the rope lighting at store fronts.

All Commissioners agreed to prohibit the lineahtigg.

Mrs. Tate said the last thing is addressing adasthédr accessory structures in non-
residential districts. She then read the requirgme

Discussion continued as to when this would be used.

10



Mrs. Tate stated this would conclude the text ammamds.

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byniissioner Zolecki to close
the public hearing for Case 18-24. A voice votea vaken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None

Motion passed

Plan Commission Recommendation

Commissioner O’Connor made a motion, seconded byr@igsion McGleam to
recommend to the Mayor and Board of Trustees appahthe UDO text
amendments as discussed with the following changes:

1. Fencing: fence heights are not allowed at five, fertst be two feet off of
property line, and softened corners. Remove thie@0from a public street.
Measuring fence height will be based on the paril &maximum of six feet
wide panel.

2. Sheds must be behind principal structure but tHeask can be reduced from 10
feet to O feet.

3. Remove the word “stealth” from small cell antenbagadd color and harmony.

4. Beekeeping add 100 feet from property line and irecgignage.

5. Add non-residential to lighting standards, no fertregulations to the
freestanding pole bases and prohibit linear lightin

A roll call vote was taken:

Ayes: O’Connor, McGleam, Cunningham, Zolecki, &lfin

Nays: None

Motion passed

Commissioner Cunningham made a motion, secondé&bhymissioner Zolecki to
authorize the Chairman to approve the Findingsaat For Case 18-24 as prepared by
staff. A voice vote was taken:
Ayes: All
Nays: None
Motion passed

ACTION ITEMS
A. 18-21 EQUESTRIAN MEADOWS PHASE 2 FINAL PUD/PLAT PLAN

Jamie Tate, Consulting Planner, said on Decembge2d15 the Village of Lemont
approved a preliminary plat/plan for a 34 singleig residential planned unit
development located at 12150 Bell Road. On Jun@@16 the Village approved the
Final PUD/Plat for Equestrian Meadows Phase | efdévelopment that included 22
single-family lots. On October 31, 2018 James MaftEquestrian Meadows, LLC
submitted an application for a Final PUD/Plat apptdor Phase 1l for the remaining
12 single-family lots. Staff is recommending apg@ovith conditions.

11



There were some UDO exceptions that were parteoPtieliminary Plat/Plan that
was approved. She then read those exceptionsarmbhditions for the final/plat
approval. The site plan is consistent with therapgd preliminary PUD and the
approvals for Phase | Final PUD. For Engineeriveyé were some comments
regarding lots 33 and 34 as the rear yards havesable living or play area. Also, the
engineer requests verification of compliance whi tberm rule” along Bell Road.
There are other minor comments that need to besasied along with MWRD and
IEPA permits that are in the process of being dsue

Mrs. Tate stated there are comments from the Faeshal addressing requirements
and fire hydrant minimum distances and locatioms thust be met in the final plans.
The Village Arborist has requested an as-built $magbe plan for the entire
subdivision once completed for Village records.e Millage Ecologist stated that the
landscape plan does not comply with the Villageisent Native Planting Guidelines
as the guidelines were not in place at the tim@refiminary PUD approval.
However, the ecologist has confirmed, the landsqdge is consistent with the
previously approved plans. So moving forward,abements provided by the
ecologist are considered suggestions rather trganresl since guideline were not in
place at time of preliminary approval.

The only difference with the residential desigmdtds is they can only have seven
three-car front loaded garages. All single-famdiégtached units shall be constructed
with masonry from grade to the top of the firstrgtoBrick and stone veneer shall be
anchored veneer. Siding shall be cement fiberdyd# Smart Side or a comparable
product of similar style and quality as approvedhsy Village Planning and
Economic Development Director.

Staff does recommend approval with the followingditions:

1. Address any additional outstanding issues as notda comment letter by the
Fire Marshal and Village Engineer.

2. Consider the Village Ecologist’s recommendationmget the Village Natural
Planting Guidelines.

3. Reuvise the final plat per the Village Engineer ataff's comments.

4. Comply with the final residential design guidelines

Chairman Spinelli stated the plat needs to be eoldahd corrected. Currently, at
around lot 32 it is showing a 15 foot rear yarditytdrainage easement and a 30 foot
rear yard setback. When you look at the gradiag ph page 123 of staff’'s report,
the storm sewer is well beyond the 15 foot publilityyeasement. The drainage
swale that the Village Engineer was talking abthg,grading does go all the way to
the rear yard setback. The elevations shown ogrdmding plan would indicate that
there would be stormwater detention volume stomdtiese backyards. Lots 32, 33
and 34 need to be corrected to accommodate thdrskhie storm sewer along with
storm water detention volume in those lots. Hathsked if any of the

12



Commissioners had any questions for staff at time.t None responded. He then
asked the applicant to come forward.

Applicant Presentation

Matthew Kline, representing the applicant, saidf steade a great presentation and
they do not have anything to add further. Theyaaaslable for questioning.

Chairman Spinelli asked if they got their wetlasglues resolved.

Mr. Kline said they were told by the Army Core thia¢ wetland issue is resolved, but
they have not issued the permit yet. In regardsdee two lots, the swale is very
shallow.

Sean Dudak, Design Tech Engineer, stated theyresiged their plans and
resubmitted them to the Village.

Chairman Spinelli asked what is the high water now.
Mr. Dudak said it is 728.3 and there is a spotagiewn of 728.5 at lot 34.
Chairman Spinelli stated the rim elevation at B8sand 34 is at 28 even.

Mr. Dudak said they have revised that to 28.5 withplans he has. The swale has
been moved over; they put in a modular block ratgimvall on the property line.

Chairman Spinelli stated he would recommend thay ttonfirm that the easements
are a proper width to contain everything. He thsked if any of the Commissioners
had any further questions for the applicant. N@sponded. He then asked if there
was anyone in the audience that wanted to speadgards to this case.

Public Comment

None

Plan Commission Discussion

Chairman Spinelli asked if any of the Commissiorterd any questions or
comments. None responded. He then called fortoméor recommendation.

Plan Commission Recommendation

Commissioner Cunningham made a motion, second€bhymissioner McGleam to
recommend to the Mayor and Board of Trustees appafivCase 18-21 Equestrian
Meadows Phase 2 Final PUD/Plat Plan with staffisdations. A roll call vote was
taken:

13



VI.

VII.

Ayes: Cunningham, McGleam, Zolecki, O’Connor, 8lhin
Nays: None

Motion passed

GENERAL DISCUSSION

Mr. Herman asked the Commission if they agreeddgenthe meeting dates from the
third Wednesday of the month to the first Wednesafairie month.

All Commissioners agreed.

Mr. Herman said he had a resident inquire abouinhigazhickens in a residentially
zoned property. The way the code reads now thesaocy structure for the coop
would have to be on a lot of an acre or more aatethre some setback requirements.
This unfortunately, is not possible for most reside Before staff goes any further
they would like to get some feedback from the Cossion.

Chairman Spinelli stated he feels this might dtadreate a lot of problems.
Commissioner O’Connor said he agrees.

Commissioner McGleam stated the way the code i$enris perfect.
Commissioner Zolecki said he would entertain tieaid

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

None

ADJOURNMENT

Chairman Spinelli called for a motion to adjoure theeting.

Commissioner McGleam made a motion, seconded byn@issioner Zolecki to
adjourn the meeting. A voice vote was taken:

Ayes: All

Nays: None
Motion passed

Minutes prepared by Peggy Halper

14



15



